UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACEN Cy
REGION 5 . X B

1o the Matter of: Docket No,

CWA-05-2018-0014

)
)
Americana Powder Finishing, LLC ) Proceeding to Assess a Class I Civil
2 Industrial Drive } Penalty under Section 309(g) of the Clean
Salem, Illinois ) Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)

)

)

)

Respondent.

Consent Aereement and Final Order

Preliminary Statement

1 This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section 309(g)
of the Clean Water Act (“CWA” or “the Act”), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and Section 22.13(b) and
22.18(b)(2)~(3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment
of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated
Rules) as codified at 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)}2)~(3).

2. The Complainant is, by lawful delegation, the Director of the Water Division,
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 5.

3. Respondent is Americana Powder Finishing, LLC (Americana), a corporation in
Salem, Ilinois.

4, Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of
a complaint, an administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the
1ssuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFO). See 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b).

5 The parties agree that seitling this action without the filing of a complaint or the
adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.

6. Respondent consents to the terms of this CAFO, including the assessment of the
civil penalty specified below.

Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

7 Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFO and neither admits
not denies the factual allegations in this CAFO.

8. Respondent waives any and all remedies, claims for relief, and otherwise
available rights to judicial or administrative review that Respondent may have with respect to
any issue of fact or law set forth in this CAFO including, but not limited to, its right to request a



hearingunder 40 C.ER. § 22.15(c) and Sections 309(g}23(B) and {(4XC) of the CWA, 33 US.C.
§ 1319 @y 25(B) end (4(C); s right to appellate review under Section369¢2)(83(B) of the CWA. )
33 USCOE I3L9BIBY; s ight to seek federal judivial review of the CAFD pursuant fo
Chapter 7 of the Administrative Procedure Act, 3 US.C. §§ 701-06; any right to contest the
allegations in this CAFO; and its right to appeal this CAFQ. Respondent also consents to-the
issuance of this CAFO without forther adjudication.

Statutory and Resulatory Backereund

9. Section 307(b) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1317(b), states “[t]he Administrator shall
publish proposed regulations establishing pretreatment standards for introduction of pollutants
into treatment works which arepublicly owned for those pollutants which are determined not o
be susceptible 1 treatment by such treatment works or which would interfere with the operation
of such reatment works ...."

10.  Pursnant to 307(b) of the Act, 33 U.S:C. § 1317(b), the Administrator published
“General Pretreatment Regulations for Existing and New Sources” on January 28, 1981, codified
at 40 C.E.R. Part 403. By the texms of the regulation, the requiremetits of Part 403 became
effective three years from the date of promulgation. These standards include general
‘prohibitions, speeific prohibitions and local Hmits.

1. Section307(d) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1317(d), states that [ajfier the effective
date of any ... pretreatment standard promulgated under this section, it shalf be uniawful for any
owner or operator of any source to operate any souwce in violation of any such ... pretreatment
standard.”

12 Section 308(2) of the Act, 33 U.8.C, § 1318(a), provides, among other things, that
. whenever required to carry outthe objective of this chapter, the -Administrator of EPA shall
require the- owner or operator of any point source to: establish and maintain such records, make
sueh reports, and provide such other information as he or she may reasonably require.

13..  Section 309(a)(3) of the Act, 33 U.8.C. § 1319(a)(3), states that whenever the
Administrator-of EPA finds a person in violation of Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.8.C.
§ 1311(a), the Administrator of EPA may issue an order requiring that person to comply with the
provisions of the Act.

14, On September 30, 2015, EPA and Americana entered into an Administrative
Consent Order (the Order) in which EPA set forth its determination that Americana was in
violation-of Section 301{a) of the Act, 33 U:8.C. § 1311{a). The Order set forth actions to be
taken by Americana to bring Americana into compliance with the CWA and its implementing
regulations.

15, Section 309(g) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 13 19(g), states that whenever, on-the-basis
of any information available the Administrator finds that any person-has violated [section 307 of
the Act, 3310.5.C. § 1317], ... the Admimstrator ... may, after consultation with the State in



which the viplation occurs,assess a ... class 1 civil penalty under {section 309(g)(2¥(B) of the
AL 33 US.COS 153195228,

6. TheMetal Finishing Point Source Cate 2OTY, af —HJ CIFR.§433 1’?’(a) ;:n ohibits
any source that began discharging wastewater after the proanilgation of 40 CF. R. § 433.17(a)
from discharging wastewater with concentrations of metals in-excess of the pren'eatmenf
standards for new sources (PSNS).

7. The State-of Tilinois has not sought authority from EPA under 40 CF.R. § 403.10.
1o allow {llinois 1o approve pretreatment programs submitted by Publicly Owned Treatment
Worlks (POTWSs) pursuant to 40 C.ER. § 403.8. Consequently, consistent with 40 C.F.R.
§ 403 .3(c), EPA is the “approval authority” for POTW pretreatment programs in the State of
Hlinois.

18 The City of Salem POTW has not been authorized by EPA. pursuantto 40 CE.R.
§ 403.38 to operate its own prefreatment program. Consequently, EPA is the Control Authority for
the City of Salem POTW consistent with 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(a).

19, Theterm “indirect discharge™ means the introduction of pollutants into a POTW
from any non-domestic source regulated under section 307(b), (¢), or (&) of the Act.

20.  The term “industrial user” (IU) means a source of indirect discharge.

21, Aspericana discharges wastewater to the City of Salem POTW and therefore has
one or more indirect discharges.

22.  Americapa is therefore an IU as the term is defined in 40 C.FR. § 403.3.

23, Respondent is-a-corporation and therefore a “person” under Section 502(5) of the
CWA, 33 US.C. § 1362(5),

24, Atall imes relevant to this-Order, Respondent owned and operated the-
Americana Powder Finishing, a metal finishing facility, located in Salem, Illinots (“facility™).

Faétnal Allecations and Alleced Violations

25.  OnJamuary 22, 2018, July 25, 2016, and August 30, 2017, EPA received a report
submitted by Americana that xdentxﬁed the Zine concentration in Amencana s wastewater as 133

mg/L, 48.8 mg/l, and 1.79 mg/l., respectively, which is above the standard of 1.48 mg/L and in
violation of the CWA and its implementing resulations.

26.  Onluly25, 2016, EPA received a report submitted by Americana that identified
the copper concentration in Americana’s wastewater as 2.62 mg/L, whichis above the standard
of 2:07 mg/L and in violation of the CWA and its implementing regulations.
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27, OnV¥ebruaty 21. 2017 Americana failed to include a Total Toxic Organic{TTO)
dnalysis.in-a report-and Vielated 40 C.F.R. §433.12, whigh requires submission of a TTQ
analysis with each semi-annuel compliance report.

28.  Americana failed to notify EPA within 24 hours of obtaining knowledge that it
had discharged wastewater with concentrations of zinc and copperin excess of the allowable
lirmits and failed to perform or submit-a repeat discharge analysis for reports submitted in
January, 2016 and August, 2017 as required by 40 C.F R, § 403.12(g)(2) and Attachment 1 Part
ILD of the Order, and violated both 40 C.FR. § 403.12(g)(2) and Attachment 1 Part 1D of'the
Order.

29, 40 CER. §403.12(¢) and Attachment I Part TILD. Paragraph 2 of the Order
Tequire Americana to submit semi-annual reports to EPA on July 31 and January 31 of each vear,
Americana submitted a report to EPA on February 21, 2017, 21 days after the due date of
January 31, 2017, Americana submitted a report to EPA on August 30, 2017, 30 days after the
due daie of July 31, 2017. These tardy submissions were in viplation of 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(e)
and Attachment 1 Part III.D. Paragraph 2 of the Order.

Civil Penaltv

30.  Under Section 309(g)(2)}BYofthe Act; 33 UL.S.C. § 1319(g)(2¥B), and 40 C.F.R.
Part 19, the Administrator miay assess-a Class IT.civil penalty of up to°$16,000 per day of
violation up to.a-total of $187,500 for violations of Section 301 of the Act that occurred after
December 6, 2013 throngh November 2, 2015, and up t0:$20,963 per day of violationup to a
total of $262,066 for violations of Section 301 of'the Act that occurred afier November 2, 2015
and assessed on or after Jannary 15, 2017.

31.  Based upon the facts alleged in this CAFO, and upon the nature, circumstances,
extent and gravity of the violations alleged..as well as Respondent’s prier history of such
violations, degres of culpability, economic: benefit or savings-(if any) resulting from the
violations, and such other matfers as justice may require, EPA agrees to tesolve the violations
alleged in this CAFQ in exchange for payment by Americana of a civil penalty of $14,784.

32, Within 30 days affer the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay the
$14,784 civil penalty by sending a cashier’s or certified check, payable to-“Treasurer, United
States of America,” to;

TU.S. EPA

Fines and Penalfies

Cincinnatl Finance Cehtet

P.0. Box 979077

St. Louis, Missouri 631979000

The check must note Respondent’s name and the-docket number of this CAFO.




33, Atransmittal letterthat states Respondent’s name. complete address, the case
docker numtbier. and the billing document number must-accompary the peyment. Respondent
must writs the case decket number and the billing document number on the face of the check and
send copics of the cheek and wransmittal letter to:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
77 West Jackson Boulevard (E-197)

Chicagp, Illinois 60604

Brian Lenell

Water Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch (WC-15J)
U.S. EPA Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, lilinois 60604

Steven Kaiser

Associate Regional Counsel

Office of Regional Counsel {(C-147)
U.S. EPA Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Illinois 60604

34, This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

33.  IfRespondent does not timely pay the civil penalty, Complainant may request the
United States Department of Justice o bring = civilaction to collect any unpaid portion of the
penalty with interest, handling charges, nonpayment penaltics, and the United States
enforcement expenses for the collection action. Respondent acknowledges that the validity,
amount, and appropriateness-of the civil penalty are'ngt reviewable in-a collection action.

36, Respondept must pay the following on any amount averdue under this CAFQ.
Interest will accrue-on any amount overdue from the date the payment was due at a rate
established pursuantto 31U.S.C. § 3717. In addition to the assessed penalty and interest,
Respondent must pay the United States” attorneys” fees.and costs for collection proceedings, and
Respondent must pay a nonpaymient penalty each guatter during which the assessed penalty is
overdue. This nonpayment penalty will be 20 percent of the aggregate amount of the ontstanding
penalties and nonpayment penalties accrued from the beginning of the quarter. See 33 U.S.C.

§ 1319(g)(9).

General Provisiens

37.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.5, the parties consent to service of this CAFO by email
at the foliowing email addresses: kaiser.steven@epa.gov (for Complainant) and
geffiglamericana com (for Respondent). See 40 C.FR. §§ 22.5-6.



_ 38, Full payment of the penalty as described in .parﬁgmp;hs: 34 and 35 and full
compliance with this CAFO shell novin any case affect the right of the EPA or the Uired Staras
to pursie appropriate injunstive or other equitable relief orcriminal sanctions for any-viclatons
oflaw.

39.  Full payment of the penalty as described in paragraphs 34 and 35 and full
compliance with this CAFO shall only resolve Respondent’s liability for federal civil penalties
for theviolations and facts alleged in this CAFO.

40.  This CAFO doesnot affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with the Clean
Water Act and other applicable federal, state, or local laws and permits.

41, Respondent’s full compliance with this CAFO shall only resolve Respondent’s
Tiability for federal civil penalties for the violations alleged in the CAFO.

42, This CAFO is a “final order” for purposes of 40 CF.R. § 22.31 and the EPA’s
Interim Clean Water Act Settlement Penalty Policy (Mar. 1995).

43,  The terms of this CAFO bind the Respondent and its successors and assigns.

44.  Each person signing fhis agreement certifies that he or she has the muthority to
sign for'the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to the terms of this CAFO.

45, Each party agrees to bear its owrt costs and attorney’s fees in this. action.
44, This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

47.  The effective date for this CAFQ is the date it is filed with the Regional Hearing
Cierk, which is after completion of the notice and comment requirements of Sections
309(@)(4)C) and 309(g)(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1319(2)(4)(CY, (5) and 40 C.FR.
§§ 22.38, 22.45, and which shall be at Teast 30-days before the CAFO has been signed by the
Regional Judicial Officer or Regional Administrator.



In the Matter of:
Americana Powder Finishine -
Docket o, | | Ewklo5.2018-0014

Americana Powiler Finishing, LLC, Respondent

%W@QAM/Q 7-3/-20) %

Gerald Purcell Date
Partner
Americana Powder Finishing, LLC

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant

,{_,Ji{_[‘—& >y (» LDl 12 o, ‘/r_;,t__ 5[ 13 /_/ ¥
Linda Holst, Acting Director /.’ Date
Water Division
United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5

Chicago, Illinois



In the Matter oft
Americana Powder Finishing, LLC
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Final Order

This Consent Agreement and Final Order,-as agreed fo by the parties, shall become ffective
mmmediately upon filing with-the Regionel Hearing Clerk. This Final Order-concludes this
preceeding pursuant to-40 C.ER. § 22,18 and 22.31. IT IS SO-ORDERED.

By: Date:
Ann 1. Coyle
Regional judicial Officer
U.S. Environmertal Protection Agancy
Region 5




In the matter of: Americana Powder Finishing, LLC
Docket Number: CWA-05-2018-0014

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final

Order, which was filed on , this day in the following manner to the
addressees:
Copy by email to: Geft Purcell

Americana Powder Finishing, LLC

2 Industrial Drive

Salem, Illinois 62881
geffl@americana.com

Copy by e-mail to
Attorney for Complainant: Steven Kaiser
kaiser.steven@epa.gov

Copy by e-mail to
Regional Judicial Officer: Ann Coyle
coyle.ann@epa.gov

Dated:

LaDawn Whitehead
Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5



